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DATE: 
December 5, 2012
FROM: 
Diana Bobo, Contracting Officer 
TO: 

All Prospective Respondents 

SUBJECT:  
Amendment No. 001 to Announcement DE-FOA-0000771, “RFI - Designation Program for Solar Energy Stakeholders”.
I. The purpose of this Amendment is to extend the Closing Date of the Request for Information (RFI) to January 4, 2013.
II. The areas which have changed are highlighted in yellow within the RFI.  

III. All other parts of the RFI remain unchanged.

Designation Program for Solar Energy Stakeholders
DOE Request for Information (RFI) 

Introduction
The United States (U.S.) Department of Energy (DOE) seeks information from the public on the design and implementation of a potential multi-stakeholder solar designation program, and to investigate the possible effectiveness of such a program to incentivize positive changes that eliminate market inefficiencies, lower costs, and increase solar deployment. DOE is looking for general feedback from all relevant stakeholders and from specific categories of stakeholders, as identified later in this RFI.    Please note that this RFI is not intended to gather information regarding the development of a designation program for solar hardware products (e.g., photovoltaic modules, racking systems), but rather is meant to investigate a possible designation for communities, installers, property owners, businesses, financial institutions, and utilities.
RFI Submission Information
Purpose and Need for Information:  The sole purpose of this RFI is to gain input from solar installers and developers, industry participants, utilities, academia, financial institutions, local, state, and Federal government agencies, and other solar energy stakeholders. The information gathered will be used for future strategic considerations and will inform the DOE research and development portfolio team in regards to reducing solar costs and increasing solar deployment efforts. 
RFI Guidelines: DOE will not pay for information provided under this RFI and DOE will not provide reimbursement for costs incurred in responding to this RFI. This RFI does not constitute a solicitation for proposals, and DOE is not accepting applications for financial assistance or financial incentives under this RFI. Responses to the RFI will be treated as informational only and will not be viewed as a binding commitment for the respondent to develop or pursue the project or ideas discussed. DOE may decide to issue a FOA based on consideration of the input received from this RFI, but there is no guarantee that future funding opportunities or other activities will be undertaken as a result of this RFI. Because information received in response to this RFI may be used to structure future programs and FOAs and/or otherwise be made available to the public, respondents shall NOT include any information in their responses that might be considered business sensitive, proprietary, or otherwise confidential; all information shall be treated as unprotected information. 
RFI Response Instructions:  All responses to this RFI must be delivered electronically in Microsoft Word or PDF format as an attachment in an email sent to: SolarDesignation@go.doe.gov by 5:00 PM Eastern Standard Time on January 4, 2013.  Emails should have the subject line “Solar Designation RFI Response”. 
Responses should include a one-page executive summary that discusses the highlights of the response and whether a federally-sponsored solar designation would have value. Reponses should indicate the questions being addressed (e.g., Section A, Section B, etc.). Please provide the following information on the first page of the response to this RFI: 

· Company/Institutional Name;
· Company/Institutional Contact;
· Address, phone number, and e-mail address;
· Brief description of the operations and mission of business or institution. 
DOE recognizes that all questions may not be applicable to all respondents. Respondents may provide responses to all or some of the RFI questions. Respondents should focus only on the questions for which they can provide concise, quantifiable information. 
Responses should be limited to 20 pages. Please identify your answers by responding to a specific question.  The DOE welcomes other comments as well.  Identify these additional comments with an item in the RFI which will facilitate aggregating all the responses. Any information obtained as a result of this RFI may be used by the Government on a non-attribution basis for program planning and procurement strategy development. Information or data that is restricted in any way or limited for use by the Government is not solicited and will not be considered. Responses will not be considered confidential.  Please do not respond with any information you deem proprietary or confidential. 
Questions regarding the content of this RFI may be sent to SolarDesignation@go.doe.gov with the subject line “Question”.  DOE reserves the right to answer questions at DOE’s sole discretion, but has no obligation to respond to comments or provide feedback on any decisions made based on comments received.  Answers to questions will be posted on the EERE Exchange website at https://eere-exchange.energy.gov. 
In order to avoid any conflict with future funding opportunities, DOE will not respond to any respondent questions or contacts received after the closure of the submission period for this RFI. DOE thanks you for your assistance and input.

SunShot Initiative Background
The U.S. Department of Energy’s (DOE) SunShot Initiative is a collaborative national effort to dramatically reduce the cost of solar energy before the end of the decade. To aggressively drive innovation and make subsidy-free solar energy systems cost-competitive with other forms of energy, DOE supports efforts by private companies, academia, local governments, and national laboratories to reduce the cost of solar electricity to about $0.06 per kilowatt-hour by 2020. If successful, DOE believes that cost reductions in installed PV solar will enable this technology to contribute roughly 14% of America's electricity generation by 2030
.
Solar Designation Program Design Background 
As the cost of solar hardware drops dramatically in the U.S., the total price of solar energy, including non-hardware components, remains high. The balance of system “soft costs” (financing, installation, permitting, inspection, and other non-hardware processes) accounts for a large and growing portion of the total price of solar installations. Reducing these costs to achieve the SunShot targets requires a comprehensive market transformation strategy.

Unlike technological development, there is currently no straightforward method of observation, hypothesis, and experiment that can provide a single roadmap for reducing soft costs. Instead, identifying and attempting to overcome market inefficiencies is one activity that may help to reduce soft costs. 
Economists have noted that marketplaces embed some level of information asymmetry, that is, a lack of certainty exists regarding the risks, quality, and proficiencies associated with products and services.  Furthermore, market growth is not necessarily positively correlated with market maturity (and price reductions). Even as the U.S. solar market experiences compound annual growth of more than 100 percent, industry and government leaders cannot be certain that the current soft cost dilemma will solve itself without some intervention.
One approach for effective market intervention might be the introduction of an accurate, verifiable, and trustworthy “information broker”. By labeling, branding, or designating solar market stakeholders as an “information broker,” through an accepted and transparent process, DOE or another trusted institution may be able to counteract doubts and uncertainty about reliability and risks (e.g., a “Good Housekeeping Seal” for solar PV). Consider the following examples:

· A local government may experience difficulty in assessing whether solar installers in their area are operating safely and effectively and may impose burdensome permitting and inspection requirements to compensate for the lack of clear information.
· Installers may be less willing to conduct business in a certain area if they have to deal with excessive permitting and inspection-related red tape, which adds to the time and cost of doing business in that area.
An established and trusted designation (e.g., label, seal, or mark), representing the highest levels of competency, reliability, and safety, awarded to participating installers could reduce uncertainty for local officials and increase their willingness to fast-track project approvals or forgo multiple inspections. A nationally-recognized designation for participating local governments could likewise signal to installers that a community is receptive to solar businesses and maintains standardized permitting requirements and fees.  

A multi-stakeholder designation program could result in a solar ecosystem in which increased information flow and transparency lower the soft costs of solar energy resources and increase demand and deployment. This ecosystem includes not only local governments and installers, but also businesses and buildings that utilize solar energy, financial institutions that provide funding for solar installations, and electrical utilities, all of which are potential recipients of a designation.  

In addition to the reciprocal benefits of participation, a prominent national-level designation may provide substantial incentive for stakeholders to demonstrate achievements in order to receive recognition that distinguishes them from their peers.  
Request for Information

DOE seeks information from the public on the design and implementation of a potential multi-stakeholder solar designation program, and to investigate the possible effectiveness of a program to incentivize changes that decrease market inefficiencies, lower costs, and increase solar deployment. DOE requests that all respondents answer the set of general questions (Section A) below, as well as the questions relevant to the respondent’s own stakeholder type (e.g., installers, communities). While the latter is particularly desired, respondents of any stakeholder category may answer any category of questions that is deemed relevant. The listing of stakeholder categories is not exhaustive, and DOE welcomes input on the applicability of a designation program to additional stakeholders. 
Section A: General Questions

1. DOE seeks to draw lessons from successful designation programs, whether administered by private or government organizations (e.g., EPA/DOE’s ENERGY STAR label, U.S. Green Building Council’s LEED Certification). What types of designation programs would you identify as a model program? What lessons from this program could be applied to a solar designation program?
2. In setting up designation requirements for various solar stakeholders (e.g., local governments, installers), what should the DOE consider to ensure that stakeholders have fair and equal access to the solar designation? What factors should DOE consider to increase market differentiation, consumer confidence, and business communication/networking to those who hold the designation? What benefits might designees value from the DOE, aside from recognition and/or financial assistance? 
3. How often should the designation criteria be updated? How often should designations be reviewed and renewed? 
4. Some established designation programs require a fee to test products or validate results prior to the designation being awarded. Would such a fee prohibit stakeholder participation in the program? While a fee may not be practical at the onset of the program, as the designation gains more prominence over time, would stakeholders likely be willing to pay a fee to be part of the program and sustain its administration?
5. Would it be beneficial to have an entity other than the DOE administer the designation?  If so, how would a third-party obtain funding if government support was not available?  How would a third-party maintain the authority and credibility of the designation?
6. In some designation programs, tiered designations have been implemented (e.g., LEED Gold, Silver, and Platinum). How might a tiered system be applied to a solar designation program? What is the ideal number of tiers for a given stakeholder?  Do tiers provide useful information, or create ambiguity? What are some administrative barriers to a tier system? 
Section B: Designation for Solar Installers

1. Which current certification and training programs should be included in a DOE solar designation for solar installers?
2. What criteria should be included in a solar professional designation?

3. Should there be a distinct “solar installation firm” designation, separate from a designation for individual installers? What criteria provide public value and distinction between the designation for an individual solar PV professional and a designation for a solar PV installation firm? 
4. How should solar professionals be supported as solar designees? 
5. Please consider answering questions from Section A: General Questions.
Section C: Designation for Communities
1. If you represent a community, what designation programs has your community participated in? What motivated your community to participate in these programs? What are the successful and unsuccessful aspects of each of these programs for a community? Can you identify tangible benefits to your community as a result of participation in such a program, and if so, what are these benefits?  How much staff time and resources were/are devoted to pursuing/maintaining the designation?
2. What factors might motivate a community to participate in a solar designation program?  What are some obstacles that a community might encounter? 
3. What would be the most effective form of publicity for a designation for a community (e.g., signage, nationally publicized list)? If you represent a community, what efforts would you undertake to publicize your designation?
4. Beyond the recognition itself and direct financial assistance, what types of benefits from the program would be valuable to a community?
5. Would a community be more willing to do business with stakeholders who also hold a solar designation? Would this result in changes in policies or processes (e.g., an expedited permit approval for designated installers)? 
6. Designation Criteria

a. What specific criteria should be met in order for a community to receive a designation?  
b. What, if any, variations in designation requirements should be made for larger communities vs. smaller communities?
7. Please consider answering questions from Section A: General Questions.
Section D: Designation for Businesses (excluding energy sector companies)  
1. If you are a business providing products or services, excluding energy sector companies, especially solar hardware manufacturers, what industry-wide designation programs have you or your peer group participated in?  What motivated you or your peer group to participate in these programs? What are the successful and unsuccessful aspects of each?  Are there any tangible benefits for participating in such a program?  How much staff time and resources were/are devoted to pursuing/maintaining the designation?
2. How important is the type of energy resource used to power your business? If your business, products, or services are powered by using solar energy resources, do you think that you will gain a competitive advantage over your competitors? Please address both perception and business metrics, if possible.
3. What factors might motivate your business to participate in a solar designation program? Do you anticipate challenges from current investors or internal stakeholders?
4. What would be the most effective form of publicity for a solar designation for a business (e.g., signage, nationally publicized list, product/service labels, etc.)?  What efforts might your business utilize to publicize its designation?
5. Would a business be more willing to cooperate or partner with other entities (e.g., investors, suppliers) that also hold a solar designation?  Would this result in changes in business relationships or processes?
6. Designation Criteria

a. What, if any, variations in designation requirements should be made for businesses based on their size, revenue, or industry?
7. Please consider answering questions from Section A: General Questions. 

Section E: Designation for Properties

1. If you are a property owner or manager, what designation programs have you used for your property?  What motivated you or your peers to participate in these programs? What are the successful and unsuccessful aspects of each of these programs?  Please identify tangible benefits of participating in such a program.  How much staff time and resources were/are devoted to pursuing/maintaining the designation?
2. Do you think that the type of energy resource used to power your property impacts the value (actual or perceived) of your property? 
3. How large a portion of your property’s electricity should be supplied by a solar PV system in order to receive a solar property designation?

4. Should a solar designation program include a “scoring” system showing the potential for solar PV generation on a given property?

5. If you primarily lease your property for residential or commercial use, what kind of designation program would increase rental rates or net profits?
6. How could properties with a solar designation be publicly differentiated from properties that do not have a designation? 
7. Please consider answering questions from Section A: General Questions.
Section F: Designation for Financial Institutions
1. If you represent a financial institution, what designation programs, if any, have you used?  What motivated you or your colleagues to participate in these programs? What are the successful and unsuccessful aspects of each of these programs?  Please identify tangible benefits of participating in such programs. How much staff time and resources were/are devoted to pursuing/maintaining the designation? 
2. What might a solar designation for financial institutions convey (e.g., using solar to power facilities/properties, funding/investing in solar projects, rewarding clients for using solar or investing in solar, etc.)? Please explain.     
3. What might a solar designation for financial institutions consist of?  Would a financial institution be motivated to make changes to its policies and procedures to obtain such a designation? 
4. If the solar designation for financial institutions required improving access to financing options for solar installations (residential and/or commercial), what would be the main benefits for the financial institutions? What types and sizes of financial institutions might participate (e.g., credit unions, large national banks)?
5. Would financial institutions be interested in creating programs such as loyalty programs that reward consumers for transactions with other solar designation program members? How much staff time and resources might be devoted to creating/maintaining such loyalty/reward programs? 
6. Would financial institutions be more likely to do business with stakeholders that hold a solar designation (e.g., lower-interest loans to a designated installer or with a designated community)?
7. Please consider answering questions from Section A: General Questions. 
Section G: Designation for Utilities

1. How can utilities work with other solar industry stakeholders to increase the public visibility of a solar designation program?
2. How can utilities work with other stakeholders to streamline solar installation processes and decrease costs, especially soft costs? 
3. Please consider answering questions from Section A: General Questions. 
Responses to this RFI must be submitted by 5:00 pm Eastern Time on January 4, 2013.
This is a Request for Information (RFI) only.  DOE will not pay for information provided under this RFI and no project will be supported as a result of this RFI.  This RFI is not accepting applications for financial assistance or financial incentives.  DOE may or may not issue a Funding Opportunity Announcement (FOA) based on consideration of the input received from this RFI.  
This is a Request for Information (RFI) only.  DOE will not pay for information provided under this RFI and no project will be supported as a result of this RFI.  This RFI is not accepting applications for financial assistance or financial incentives.  DOE may or may not issue a Funding Opportunity Announcement (FOA) based on consideration of the input received from this RFI.  








� See SunShot Vision Study (2012): � HYPERLINK "http://www1.eere.energy.gov/solar/sunshot/vision_study.html" �http://www1.eere.energy.gov/solar/sunshot/vision_study.html�
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